
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

December 1, 2021 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 819 8313 9856 

Password: 736123 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

I. Call to Order Taylor Jones 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Kandi Pendleton 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Taylor Jones 

III. Minutes (For Action) Taylor Jones 

IV. Community Communication  Taylor Jones 

V. Old Business Taylor Jones 

A. COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery - Incident Command Team Update Kim White,  

Director of Emergency Services 

B. Employee Policy (from the Human Resources Committee)  Barbara Sowada 

1. Introductory and Probationary Period Policy (For Action) 

2. Employee Corrective Action Policy (For Action) 

3. Termination, Suspension Without Pay and Appeal Policy (For Action) 

C. Rules of Practice Governing Hearings Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel 

D. Compliance Committee of the Board Charter (For Action) Marty Kelsey  

E. Risk Management Program  Marty Kelsey 

F. Compliance Program  Marty Kelsey 

G. Medical Staff Bylaws Dr. Jacques Denker, Medical Staff President 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Taylor Jones  

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

B. Human Resources Committee  Barbara Sowada 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Ed Tardoni  

1. Capital Expenditure Requests (For Action) 

2. Bond Indenture Approval (For Action) 

3. Bad Debt (For Action) 

November Committee Meeting Information 

  

1/127



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

December 1, 2021 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 819 8313 9856 

Password: 736123 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey  

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Marty Kelsey 

G. Governance Committee Taylor Jones 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Taylor Jones 

I. Joint Conference Committee Taylor Jones 

IX. Board Review of iProtean Barbara Sowada 

X. Medical Staff Report Dr. Jacques Denker  

XI. Good of the Order                 Taylor Jones 

XII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Taylor Jones 

XIII. Action Following Executive Session Taylor Jones  

XIV. Adjourn Taylor Jones 

 

2/127



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/127



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

November 3, 2021 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met via Zoom in regular 

session on November 3, 2021, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online at the call to order: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, 

and Mr. Ed Tardoni. Excused: Ms. Kandi Pendleton. 

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Geoff 

Phillips, Legal Counsel. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Dr. Sowada read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson said the National Guard is on site and assisting in various areas. They have been 

so helpful and kind. She said we are grateful to them and the State of Wyoming for allowing them 

to help us. Two members of the National Guard stopped by to talk to her to tell her how kind 

everyone in every area of the Hospital is including the community members visiting. They told 

her the culture we have built here is something to be proud of and they can feel that and wanted 

her to know.   

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Motion carried.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the October 6, 2021, regular meeting as presented was made 

by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

  

4/127



 

 

Minutes of the November 3, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Mr. Jones said in an effort to keep the meeting time as reasonable as possible to help staff in caring 

for patients, the reminder was given to limit community communication comments to three 

minutes. Mr. Michael Eddy of Kemmerer introduced himself as a pharmacist and shared comments 

regarding the Covid-19 vaccine. He referenced information he had forwarded via e-mail for 

additional information and invited anyone interested in further discussion to contact him following 

the meeting. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery – Incident Command Team Update 

 

Ms. Kim White, Incident Commander and Director of Emergency Services, provided a Covid-19 

update. She reported we are still in crisis level of care due to staffing especially staffing in the ICU. 

Ms. White said the vaccine clinics are being well-attended. The FDA approved the Pfizer vaccine 

for kids 5 to 11 years old. Ms. Noreen Hove, Director of Infection Prevention/Employee Health 

and Grievance, will be working with Public Health to get those out.  

 

PolicyStat Approvals for Board Committees 

 

Mr. Tardoni said he thinks this is an administrative function. He said we have chair reports and we 

can track documents by date. Mr. Tardoni said if we add this step, it means five people would have 

to go into a program and said he thinks it is a step we don’t have to do. Dr. Sowada said the 

discussion was around ensuring the date and signature of the Board to help with recordkeeping for 

future reference. Mr. Kelsey said he appreciates Ms. Robin Fife, Clinical Administrative Assistant 

and Special Events Coordinator’s, explanation sent via e-mail. Mr. Tardoni suggested someone at 

the Hospital can go in and type in the name and date. Mr. Kelsey said the real official action and 

record needs to be in the minutes where the action occurred. The rest is administrative. The motion 

to approve Board policies in PolicyStat going forward containing the electronic signature of the 

Board President and date originally approved and when updates are approved that can be done by 

hospital staff was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. Mr. Tardoni said 

this is limited to policies approved by the Board and wanted to clarify we are not applying this to 

committee approval. Everyone agreed.  

 

Introductory and Probationary Period Policy, Employee Corrective Action Policy, and 

Termination, Suspension Without Pay and Appeal Policy 

 

Mr. Jones said there has been a ton of hard work, time, discussions, and meetings, and he 

appreciates everyone’s hard work. Mr. Tardoni asked who to send written comments to. Dr. 

Sowada said she was not involved until July, the information has been in draft form for a very long 

time and involves various groups, and she suggested comments be sent to Ms. Richardson. The 

group agreed to forward notes and comments to Ms. Richardson and Mr. Jones. Mr. Jones said 

depending on the comments, the Board may or may not vote on these at the December meeting.  

 

  

5/127



 

 

Minutes of the November 3, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

Rules of Practice Governing Hearings  

 

Mr. Jones said the placeholder remains on the agenda for the Rules of Practice Governing 

Hearings.  

 

Medical Staff Bylaws 

 

Ms. Kerry Downs, Director of Medical Staff Services, reported Dr. Denker was meeting with 

patients. Mr. Jones said Dr. Denker could report at any time he was available to join the meeting.   

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Compliance Committee of the Board Charter, Risk Management Program, Compliance 

Program 

 

Mr. Kelsey said there are three items for review from the Compliance Committee and provided a 

brief overview. He said earlier in the year, the CEO made a decision to put Compliance under the 

umbrella of the Quality Department. He said the documents presented are revisions and were 

approved by the Committee the prior week. Mr. Kelsey said since then, there have been some 

further discussions and he invited Ms. Richardson to provide an update. Ms. Richardson thanked 

Ms. Suzan Campbell, In-House Counsel, Dr. Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical Officer, and Ms. 

Kara Jackson, Director of Accreditation, Patient Safety, Risk, & Compliance, for all of their hard 

work on these programs and documents. Ms. Richardson said through all of the discussion, she 

thinks we have all been enlightened about the who and what of Compliance. She said she wants to 

revisit the decisions made to have Compliance fall under Quality. Ms. Richardson said she wants 

to look at Compliance reporting directly to the CEO. Regarding Risk Management, Ms. 

Richardson said she reached out to a number of hospitals in the state to learn about their structures 

and found there are as many varieties of structures as there are hospitals. She said she would like 

some time to review. She does not want to duplicate efforts. Ms. Richardson said the Quality 

Department is currently doing a lot of risk management-type work. She said Dr. Sowada directed 

us to look at three modules in iProtean regarding enterprise risk management. Ms. Richardson said 

it is opening eyes to look at options on the direction to go. She said she thinks both should report 

to her directly and wants to explore and look at that and report back. She said she appreciates all 

of the work done and wants to take the time to decide on the reporting function. Dr. Sowada noted 

we are a smaller hospital., and asked where is the risk here, what are the big-ticket items? Ms. 

Richardson said staffing, Covid, reimbursement models, there are a lot of things across the seven 

domains mentioned in the video. Ms. Richardson said we are complying with all the rules and 

regulations, keeping our patients safe, looking at external risks (enterprise risk management as a 

whole) and how that features into our strategic plan. Dr. Sowada said work has been done by the 

Board and she is wondering if this is the time to highlight the responsibilities that fall on each 

department director and work that into the plan. She said the directors are really the first line eyes 

for senior leadership. Dr. Sowada said she really likes structure, and she didn’t see that in the 

compliance plan. Ms. Richardson said she appreciates the Board supporting us looking at what 

works best and what works best for us. She will bring a new draft of the plan when it is ready. Mr. 

Jones said he appreciates that we are looking at other locations as well as seeing what works for 

us.  

 

6/127



 

 

Minutes of the November 3, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson thanked the Board for all of their support as we have worked through September 

and October with Covid-related issues. She provided an update. She said we started several years 

ago with a strategic plan to work toward a person-centered care culture. To-date, 631 people have 

attended the person-centered care workshops. We will resume workshops in November and 

December. 302 people have completed the communicating with empathy workshops. Based on 

staffing, we hope to resume those workshops in November and December, also. Ms. Richardson 

said we continue to introduce our culture during new employee orientation. She said quality and 

safety continue to be our priority. She thanked the Board for allowing us to put our patients first. 

We canceled a majority of committee meetings in September and October. We plan to resume our 

regular meetings schedule in November. Ms. Richardson said the senior leaders continue to meet 

weekly and work with department leaders on quality and safety. In the area of the workplace 

experience, Ms. Richardson said we are grateful to physicians and staff and their resilience. We 

continue to prepare for whatever tomorrow brings. We are working on staffing needs and looking 

to incentivize staff to take additional shifts. Regarding financial stewardship, we are in the process 

of refinancing our bonds. We are taking advantage of lower interest rates. She said we hope to 

save $300,000 to $350,000 in interest per year. She reviewed the groups and timeline involved. 

Ms. Richardson said everyone has been very excellent to work with and we look forward to closing 

mid-December. She provided a construction projects update and thanked the Board and Board of 

County Commissioners for their support. Ms. Richardson welcomed Ms. Jamie Webb, Interim 

Director of Dialysis, and Dr. Greg Puchala, Hospitalist. Dr. Rasheel Chowdhary, Pulmonologist, 

joins us November 15. Ms. Richardson said Cerner Go-Live for our new electronical health record 

has been moved to February 28, 2022, due to our needs regarding patients. We continue to offer 

Covid testing and drive-thru vaccines at the front entrance. We go out to various sites to offer 

vaccine clinics. The Halloween Cruz-Thru was held October 31 at the front entrance with 

approximately 1,000 bags of goodies given out to kids. Ms. Richardson said people were so 

grateful for the event. She expressed thanks to Ms. Fife and everyone who volunteered to help 

including staff who donated all the candy. A Veterans’ Day Drive-Thru lunch is planned 

November 11. A Christmas Cruz-Thru is planned Friday, December 10 from 3:00 – 5:00 PM. The 

Rock Springs Lighted Parade is December 4 at 5:00 PM. Ms. Richardson invited everyone to join 

us for upcoming events. She wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. She said she is so thankful 

to hospital staff, physicians, and the Board for their support. Ms. Richardson said it has been a 

difficult time, but our staff is amazing and resilient. She said they keep coming back and doing the 

right things every day. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Mr. Jones asked everyone to please still try to shorten meetings if they are needed moving forward 

so the priority is patients and not the meetings.   

 

Quality Committee 
 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee did not meet in October and plan to meet in November.  

 

  

7/127



 

 

Minutes of the November 3, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet.  

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said his comments and the usual financial reports are in the meeting packet.  

 

The motion to approve ratification of Capital Expenditure FY 22-20 for $26,132.55 for the 

purchase of an instrument to place feeding tubes was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. 

Mr. Tardoni noted this was purchased by the Hospital under the Covid provisions approved by the 

Board. Motion carried.  

 

The motion to approve Capital Expenditure Request FY 22-22 for $59,910.87 to replace a 

snowplow truck replacing a 2001 truck at the end of service life following receipt of three bids 

was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

The motion to approve Capital Expenditure Request FY 22-24 for $139,913 for end user laptops 

and monitors compliant with Cerner following receipt of two bids was made by Mr. Tardoni; 

second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

The motion to approve Capital Expenditure Request FY 22-25 for a video cystoscope that Dr. 

Cody Christensen helped to negotiate a lower price of $29,187.73 was made by Mr. Tardoni; 

second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

Mr. Tardoni reviewed Change Order 5 and said he feels the Board should review and consider 

them separately and approve separately. The motion to approve 78% of the change order related 

to scheduling required to keep Imaging in action during the upgrade in the Imaging area was made 

by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. The motion to approve the remaining 22% 

portion of the change order to allow windows and doors to be added to the S1 blower workspace 

so the area can be used for a maintenance work area was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. 

Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $909,081.89 presented by Mr. Ron Cheese, 

Director of Patient Financial Services, was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion 

carried. Dr. Sowada asked how this compares to July or August. Mr. Cheese said all have been 

very close and he reviewed the process.  

 

Building & Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said his report and the minutes are in the packet. He reviewed Change Order 4 from 

Groathouse Construction. He said some fireproofing is needed to meet code. The Committee did 

not want to hold up the project and recommended Ms. Richardson use her Covid-related authority 

to move forward. The motion to ratify the change order following hospital leadership action was 

made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

  

8/127



 

 

Minutes of the November 3, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

Foundation 

 

Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Executive Director, reported the Board of Directors did not meet 

the prior month. She said they are excited to bring the Red Tie Gala back and it will be virtual. 

They plan to offer an activity week in the community leading up to the event. The event website 

should go up in one week. There will be a live and silent auction. Mr. Jones asked if the Board of 

Trustees is interested in putting together an auction item like they have done in the past. Ms. 

Marshall suggested a challenge with the Board of County Commissioners. Ms. Marshall said donor 

wall plans continue moving forward. The Foundation postponed their retreat and are working to 

reschedule toward the end of February. The Board of Directors has discussed three current 

vacancies. When people term off, it’s in groups of two, three, or four. The Board of Directors is 

talking about adding a new member every year to help with turnover timing. Ms. Marshall asked 

everyone to please forward suggestions to her for names to consider. Funding requests were 

presented to the Board of Directors.  

 

BOARD REVIEW OF IPROTEAN 

 

Dr. Sowada invited Trustees to share their comments on the three 10-minute videos assigned. Mr. 

Kelsey thanked Ms. Downs for providing some excellent information via e-mail. Ms. Campbell 

said she will get with Ms. Downs to put together detailed information on credentialing and 

privileges and then differences between the processes.  

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Contract Consent Agenda 

 

Ms. Richardson said she feels we will be able to devote time to the Kaufman Hall project and feels 

this work should answer some questions and help us move forward with our strategic plan. The 

motion to approve the Kaufman Hall contract was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Motion carried.   

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Ms. Downs reported Dr. Denker was unable to join the meeting. Mr. Jones noted patients always 

come first.   

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

Mr. Kelsey asked for assistance with his portal program. He said it times out after 1.5 hours.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Mr. Jones said there would be an executive session. He said the Board would leave the current 

meeting, go to another link, and then return to the original meeting for actions taken following 

executive session. He said the Board would take a 10-minute break and reconvene in executive 

session at 3:50 PM. The motion to go into executive session was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by 

Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.   

9/127



 

 

Minutes of the November 3, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 5:01 PM, the motion to leave executive session and return to regular session was made by Dr. 

Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to approve credentials and privileges for everyone on the list provided by Ms. Downs 

was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from October 12, 2021  

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Lex Auguiste, OB/GYN  

2. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Grzegorz Puchala, Hospitalist 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. John Iliya, General Surgery 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Barbara McCorvey, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Keiron Kennedy, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Mansour Khaddr, Cardiovascular Disease (Casper Cardiology 
 

The motion to approve the physician contract discussed in executive session and delegate the 

signing of the contract to the CEO was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion 

carried.   

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 

5:02 PM.   

      

 

 

         ___________________________________ 

      Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

10/127



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 10247684 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: Employee Policies 
Reg. Standards: 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - INTRODUCTORY AND 
PROBATIONARY PERIODS 

Purpose 

Policy 
I.  Introductory period. 

A. For newly hired employees (hired after January 1, 2022) the Introductory Period will be one (1) year 

from date of hire. Introductory Period employees are not eligible to apply for internal transfers until 

after completion of the Introductory Period. 

B. Introductory Period employees are at-will employees which means the employee may be 

terminated for any non-discriminatory reason without notice during this Introductory Period. This at-

will employment status is in place until the Introductory Period ends. 

C. During this period, the employee is considered to be in training and under observation and 

evaluation by supervisors, team leaders and others. Evaluation of the employee's adjustment to work 

tasks, conduct with others, attendance and discharge of job responsibilities will be conducted during 

the Introductory Period. 

D. This period gives the employee an opportunity to demonstrate satisfactory performance for the 

position and also provides an opportunity to determine if the employee's abilities and the 

requirements of the position are sufficiently compatible. It also provides an opportunity for the 

employee to determine if the employment at the Hospital meets the expectations of the employee. 

II. Probationary Period 

A. Current employees who transfer internally will be required to serve a 90-day Probationary Period in 

the new position. Probationary Period employees are at-will employees.  Transfer is defined as a 

movement of an employee from a current position to vacant position with a different job description 

for which the employee qualifies. 

B. This Probationary Period is a time to evaluate the employee in the new position. This evaluation 

could include the employee's adjustment to new work tasks, the employee's conduct with others, 

To establish the length of time new employees hired after January 1, 2022 must serve as an Introductory 

Period at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) and to outline the period of time current MHSC 

employees, who transfer to a new position, must serve a Probationary Period. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - INTRODUCTORY AND PROBATIONARY PERIODS. Retrieved 10/2021. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/10247684/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 1 of 2

11/127



DRAFT

ability to supervise staff, attendance, discharge of new job duties and responsibilities and other 

applicable areas for evaluation. 

C. This Probationary Period may be extended for 30 days by the HR Department for any non-

discriminatory reason and upon the recommendation of the employee's leader if such an extension is 

necessary for further evaluation.  The 30 day extension continues the at-will status of the 

probationary period. 

D. At any time during the Probationary Period, the Hospital's CEO, upon a staff recommendation, may 

decide to terminate the employee.  As an alternative to termination, the Hospital may, in its sole 

discretion, consider transferring the employee to a vacant position for which the employee qualifies. 

If this occurs, the Hospital may, in its sole discretion, require the employee to serve a Probationary 

Period of 90 days. Absent a termination or transfer action described above, should the employee 

determine that the new position is not suitable, the employee may voluntary resign from Hospital 

employment. 

Approved: Board 6.6.18 

Attachments 

No Attachments 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - INTRODUCTORY AND PROBATIONARY PERIODS. Retrieved 10/2021. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/10247684/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 2 of 2

12/127



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 10331149 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: Employee Policies 
Reg. Standards: 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - EMPLOYEE CORRECTIVE 
ACTION 

Purpose 

Policy 
I. Poor performance or conduct contrary to the policies and procedures of MHSC may lead to corrective 

action.  The employee will be informed if corrective action is necessary as soon as possible after any 

performance problem has been identified. 

A. The employee's leader will discuss the situation with the employee, explaining the policy and the 

necessity of corrective action to avoid other disciplinary actions. 

B. Although one or more corrective action measures may be taken in connection with a particular 

performance problem, no formal order will be followed. Corrective action may include any of a 

variety of actions depending on the circumstances and severity of the particular situation. 

C. Allowable corrective actions may be taken at the discretion of management and include any of the 

following in any order: 

1. Counseling with employee, which will be confirmed in writing by the employee's leader and 

placed in the employee's personnel file. 

2. Verbal warning, which will be placed in the employee's personnel file. 

3. Written warning, which will be placed in the employee's personnel file. 

4. Final written warning, which will be placed in the employee's personnel file. 

5. Disciplinary suspension with pay, which will be confirmed in writing and placed in the 

employee's personnel file. 

6. Suspension with pay to remove an employee from hospital premises during and pending an 

investigation which will be documented and placed in the employee's personnel file.. 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) has high behavioral and performance expectations of its 

staff.  To that end, MHSC will pursue corrective action measures when needed for the purpose of correcting 

areas of performance deficiency or to address violations of Hospital policies. The purpose of this policy is to 

describe allowable corrective actions that may be imposed on employees and set forth procedures for the 

imposition of the allowable corrective actions. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - EMPLOYEE CORRECTIVE ACTION. Retrieved 10/2021. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/10331149/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 1 of 2

13/127



DRAFT

7. Disciplinary suspension without pay, which will be documented and placed in the employee's 

personnel file. MHSC Administration, in particular the HR Department and the CEO,  must 

comply with the Termination, Suspension without Pay and Appeal Policy prior to imposing 

disciplinary suspension without pay as a corrective action. 

8. Termination, which will be documented and placed in the employee's personnel file. MHSC 

Administration, in particular the HR Department and the CEO, must comply with the 

Termination, Suspension without Pay and Appeal Policy prior to terminating an employee. 

D. The corrective action process will not always commence with a counseling or include every step. The 

above options are not to be seen as a process in which one step always follows another. 

1. Some acts, particularly those that are intentional or serious, warrant more severe action on the 

first or subsequent offense. 

2. An employee, at a written warning or higher,  may be ineligible for pay increases and any 

additional compensation. 

3. Consideration will be given to the seriousness of the offense, the employee's intent and 

motivation to change the performance, and the environment in which the offense took place. 

Approved: Board 6.6.18 

Attachments 

No Attachments 

Link to Form # 802452 Counseling and Corrective Action Form http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/

policy/2632825/latest/ 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - EMPLOYEE CORRECTIVE ACTION. Retrieved 10/2021. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/10331149/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 2 of 2

14/127



Termination, Suspension Without Pay and Appeal 

 

I. General:   

 

a. This Termination, Suspension Without Pay and Appeal policy and procedure 

applies to all employees of Memorial Hospital except employed physicians and 

other providers who are under contract to provide services or labor to the 

Hospital. 

 

b. Only the Hospital’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) has the authority to suspend 

without pay or terminate the employment of a Hospital employee and must 

provide a written directive to the Human Resources Office prior to any 

termination or suspension without pay proceeding. 

 

c. This Termination and Appeal policy and procedure does not apply to reduction-

in-force (layoffs) due to a lack of funds, lack of work or other reasons. 

 

d. Employees may not utilize the Hospital’s Conflict Resolution Policy to address 

termination decisions.  

 

II. Definitions:   

 

a. At-will employee:  An at-will employee is an employee of the Hospital employed 

during the Introductory Period, or, as applicable, during the Probationary Period, 

as set forth by Hospital policy 5208211.  At-will employees are subject to 

termination, with or without cause, with or without notice, and at any time.  

Nothing in this policy or any other policy of the Hospital shall be interpreted to 

be in conflict with or to eliminate or modify in any way, the at-will employment 

status of employees employed during the Introductory Period or Probationary 

Period, as applicable. 

 

b. Non at-will employee:  A non at-will employee is an employee of the Hospital 

who has successfully completed the Introductory Period, or as applicable, the 

Probationary Period, of employment as set forth in Policy 5208211. 

 

c. Termination:  The involuntary termination of an employee by the Hospital. 

 

III. Termination of At-Will Employees:   

 

a. General:  The Director of Human Resources, or designee, in consultation with the 

CEO, shall terminate the employment of an at-will employee upon notification of 

15/127



such decision in writing by providing the written notice to such employee in person 

or by registered or certified mail to the last known address of such employee.  If the 

written notice is mailed, proof of such written notice together with the proof of 

mailing, shall be kept and retained in the records of the Hospital.  Reasons for the 

termination decision shall not be given, other than outlined below. 

 

b. The Right to a Hearing:  Should the at-will employee believe that the decision to 

terminate the employee’s employment was based on the exercise of the employee’s 

constitutional rights, and/or that the employee has a reasonable expectation of 

continued employment and/or that the action to terminate the employee’s 

employment would stigmatize the employee, the following procedure will take 

place: 

i. The employee may request a hearing before an Administrative Hearing 

Officer by requesting same in writing within ten (10) calendar days of 

receipt of the termination notice.  The request shall be made to the CEO. 

ii. The CEO shall immediately notify the Board of Trustees’ attorney of the 

request and shall forward the written request for a hearing to the Board of 

Trustees’ attorney. The Board of Trustees’ attorney shall then arrange for 

an Administrative Hearing Officer to conduct a pre-hearing conference as 

soon as practical. 

iii. At the request of the employee, the CEO shall submit to the 

Administrative Hearing Officer the reasons for termination. At the same 

time, the Administrative Hearing Officer shall request that the employee 

submit to the Administrative Hearing Officer substantial evidence that the 

termination decision was based upon an exercise of the employee’s 

constitutional rights and/or that the employee has a reasonable 

expectation of continued employment, and/or how the action of 

termination would stigmatize the employee. 

iv. After reviewing the reasons for the termination and any evidence 

submitted by the employee, the Administrative Hearing Officer shall 

determine that: 

1. Sufficient evidence has been presented by the employee to warrant 

a formal hearing by the Administrative Hearing Officer. In such 

case, a hearing will be scheduled and, at the conclusion of the 

hearing, the Administrative Hearing Officer will submit a written 

copy of the Administrative Hearing Officer’s findings, 

16/127



conclusions, and recommendations to the Board of Trustees for a 

final decision.   

OR 

2. Insufficient evidence has been presented by the employee to 

warrant a formal hearing by the Administrative Hearing Officer. 

In such a case, the Administrative Hearing Officer will inform 

both the CEO and the employee of the Administrative Hearing 

Officer’s findings. The CEO shall discuss these findings with the 

Board of Trustees’ attorney and will subsequently make a 

recommendation to the Board of Trustees for a final decision.  If 

the Administrative Hearing Officer determines that a formal 

hearing is not warranted, upon request, the Administrative 

Hearing Officer will provide the employee the information as 

described in this paragraph. 

 

v. If the Administrative Hearing Officer determines that a formal hearing 

shall be held, the Administrative Hearing Officer will immediately 

provide the employee the CEO’s reasons for termination and will 

immediately provide the CEO with any evidence submitted by the 

employee. 

vi. Every reasonable effort shall be made by the Hospital to ensure that these 

due process proceedings are conducted in a timely manner. The 

Administrative Hearing Officer shall make a determination as to whether 

or not a formal hearing is warranted within thirty (30) calendar days from 

receipt of notice by the Board of Trustees’ attorney. Should the 

Administrative Hearing Officer determine that a formal hearing be 

conducted, the Administrative Hearing Officer shall notify the Board of 

Trustees’ attorney of same. The Board of Trustees’ attorney shall then 

arrange for a pre-hearing conference as soon as practical. The Hospital’s 

Rules of Practice Governing Contests Before the Board of Trustees of 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (“Rules of Practice”) shall be 

followed.  Should the Administrative Hearing Officer determine that a 

formal hearing is not warranted, a recommendation regarding the 

disposition of the case shall be made to the Board of Trustees within thirty 

(30) calendar days of the Administrative Hearing Officer’s determination. 

IV. Termination or Suspension Without Pay of Non At-will Employees:   

17/127



a. Non At-will Employees have the right to appeal any decision of any employment 

action involving suspension without pay or termination. 

b. The board may suspend without pay or terminate any non at-will employee for 

any of the following reasons:  

i. Incompetency; 

ii. Neglect of duty; 

iii. Immorality including, without limitation, engaging in conduct with a 

patient that is sexual or may reasonably be interpreted by the patient as 

sexual; any verbal behavior that is seductive or sexually demeaning to a 

patient, or engaging in sexual exploitation of a patient or former patient; 

iv. Insubordination; 

v. Physical incapacity to perform job duties even with reasonable 

accommodation; 

vi. Failure to perform duties in a satisfactory manner; 

vii. Conviction of a felony; and 

viii. Any other good or just cause. 

c. Pre-determination hearing:  Proposed suspensions without pay or terminations of 

non at-will employees must follow the procedures set forth herein.   

i. A recommendation of suspension without pay or termination of non at-

will employees shall be initiated by the Hospital by offering the affected 

employee an informal pre-determination hearing as follows:  

1. The CEO shall provide notice to the employee of the pre-

determination hearing in person, by electronic means or in writing 

by registered or certified mail to the last known address of such 

employee.  The notice shall include the recommended action 

(suspension without pay or termination), written charges against 

the employee and a brief explanation of the evidence supporting 

the charges. 

2. The pre-determination hearing shall be a face-to-face meeting or 

written statement by the employee. 

3. The pre-determination hearing shall provide an opportunity for the 

employee to present the employee’s side of the story and provide 

18/127



any information regarding the employee’s employment the CEO 

should take into consideration prior to making a decision. 

4. The pre-determination hearing shall be recorded.   

5. After hearing the employee’s side of the story and considering the 

information provided by the employee, the CEO may withdraw, 

reduce, or recommend the imposition of the proposed discipline 

or action. 

6. The employee may waive the right to participate in the pre-

determination hearing.   

7. At the pre-determination hearing, the CEO, or designee, in 

consultation with the CEO, shall be in attendance.  The 

employee’s supervisor shall also be in attendance, unless the 

employee plans to attend the meeting and objects to the presence 

of the employee’s supervisor. 

8. As determined by the CEO, or designee, in consultation with the 

CEO, the employee is allowed to have a limited number of other 

individuals attend the pre-determination hearing to speak in 

support of the employee. 

d. Decision following the pre-determination hearing: Following the pre-

determination hearing, the CEO, or designee, in consultation with the CEO, will 

provide written notice either in person, by electronic means or via United States 

Mail to the employee of the Hospital’s decision.  The decision shall indicate 

whether the employee shall remain employed at the Hospital, be suspended 

without pay, or be terminated.  The decision shall include the reasons for the 

recommendation.  Proof of such written decision together with the proof of 

mailing or electronic delivery, shall be kept and retained in the records of the 

Hospital.  

e. Appeal of final decision:  In accordance with the Rules of Practice, employees 

who are subject to this policy and desire to appeal a decision by the CEO to 

terminate or suspend without pay may request a hearing before the Board of 

Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (“Board”) in accordance 

with the Rules of Practice. 

19/127



f. Hearing: The Board shall then conduct a formal contested case hearing in 

accordance with the Rules of Practice and the Wyoming Administrative 

Procedure Act, W.S. §16-3-101 et seq. (1977 as amended).   

i. Upon receipt of a request for appeal as set forth herein, the CEO shall 

immediately notify the Board’s attorney of the request for appeal and shall 

forward the request to the employee.  The Board’s attorney shall then 

arrange for a hearing to be conducted in accordance with the Rules of 

Practice.   

ii. Every reasonable effort shall be made by the Hospital to ensure that these 

due process proceedings are conducted in a timely manner. 

 

20/127



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 10020157 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: Corporate Compliance 
Reg. Standards: 

Board Compliance Committee Charter 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE: 

TEXT 
I. Authority: 

A. The Board Compliance Committee has no expressed or implied power or authority. 

II. Responsibilities: 

A. In fulfilling its charge, the Board Compliance Committee is responsible for the following activities and 
functions: 

1. Oversee the Hospital's compliance program and monitor its performance. 

2. Make recommendations to the Board regarding compliance practices. 

3. Review compliance risk areas, based on the compliance audits, and the steps the Hospital has 
taken to assess, control, and report such compliance risk exposures. 

4. Ensure the Board is aware of significant compliance issues (EMTALA, OSHA, CMS, other 
regulatory/supervisory entities) and the measures taken by the Hospital to address non-
compliance. 

III. Composition: 

A. The Board Compliance Committee shall consist of four (4) voting members and shall include the 
Chief Executive Officer, Compliance Officer, and two members of the Board of Trustees, one of 
whom shall serve as chair. The Compliance Auditor will be a non-voting member of the Committee 
and may serve as Secretary for meeting minutes. 

B.  Meeting Schedule: 

1. The Board Compliance Committee shall meet monthly or as needed. 

IV. Reports: 

A. Annual Work Plan 

B. Internal and external investigations 

The purpose of the Board Compliance Committee is to assist the Board of Trustees (Board) in discharging its 
fiduciary and oversight duties to ensure the compliance activities of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
(Hospital) are vigorous, appropriate and continuous. 

Board Compliance Committee Charter. Retrieved 11/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
10020157/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 2

21/127



DRAFT

C. Audits and monitoring per annual work plan; any serious issues identified in audits 

D. Hot-line calls/email activity 

E. Monthly HIPAA monitoring 

F. Monthly exclusion/sanctions report 

G. All allegations of material fraud or senior management misconduct 

H. Significant regulatory changes and enforcement events 

I. Other reports as needed or requested 

Approved: FILL IN APPROVAL DATE 

Attachments 

No Attachments 

Board Charter: The Compliance Committee 

Category: Board Committees & Committee Charters 

Title: Compliance Committee 

Original Adoption: 7/4/2018 

Revision: 7/25/2018; 1/29/2020; 4/1/2020; 7/1/2020, 09/17/2021 

Board Compliance Committee Charter. Retrieved 11/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
10020157/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 2

22/127



 

  Page 1 of 2 

Confidential   11/23/2021 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

November 17, 2021 

 
 

Present:  Voting Members: Kara Jackson (Quality Director), Dr. Barbara Sowada (Quality 

Board Chair), Ed Tardoni (Quality Board Member), Irene Richardson (CEO), Dr. 

Alicia Gray, Dr. Melinda Poyer (CMO), Dr. Kari Quickenden (CCO), Leslie Taylor 

(Clinic Director), Noreen Hove 

 

Non-voting Members:  Cindy Nelson, 

 

Guests: Taylor Jones (Board of Trustees Chair), Dr. Jacques Denker, Jodi Corley 

(Nursing Informatics) 

 

Absent/Excused:  Voting Members:  Tami Love (CFO), Ann Marie Clevenger (CNO), Dr. Phillip Najm 

  

Non-voting Members: Corey Worden, Valerie Boggs, Kalpana Pokhrel, Karali 

Plonsky,  

 

 

Chair:   Dr. Barbara Sowada  

 

 

Approval of Agenda & Minutes 

Dr. Sowada presented the Agenda and proposed a change: Eliminate old business, drop 

Informational items for review/discussion, to allow for time for an Executive Session. Dr. Poyer 

motioned to approve the Agenda with changes, Mr. Tardoni seconded the motion. Motion was 

approved. 

 

Dr. Sowada presented the Minutes form August 25, 2021. Mr. Tardoni motioned to approve, Dr. 

Poyer seconded. Motion was approved. 

 

Mission Moment 

Ms. Nelson shared two Mission Moments we have received several emails from people recently. 

One was an ED visit, one was a couple of out of towners who used to live in Rock Springs and 

visited Dr. Johnson in the Clinic. Ms. Nelson further shared an Oncology patients experience, 

who was scared and a nurse took time to sit with her. 

 

Old Business 

No discussion. 

 

New Business 

Ms. Jackson presented 3 Root Cause Analysis (RCA), which will be further discussed in Executive 

Session. 

 

Dr. Quickenden presented the MQSA (Mammography Quality Standards Act) Survey, which 

occurred on November 8th. They normally come every other year, but it has been 2 ½ years 

since they were last here.  Spent ¾ day here; inspected equipment, work flow and quality 

review process – there were no citations! 

 

 

23/127



 

  Page 2 of 2 

Confidential   11/23/2021 

 

Ms. Corley reviewed MIPS, final score was 88.10. Our goal was 85 or above in order to get the 

“Exceptional Performance Adjustment” of 0.46%. Overall our score was up 10 points for the year. 

Changes coming in 2022: Quality = 40%, Cost =20%, Improvement Activities = 15%, Promoting 

Interoperability = 25%. Next year we will be able to report completely from Cerner, no more 

mixing of systems. 

 

Ms. Jackson reviewed the Hospital Readmission Reduction Program (HRRP) report from CMS; 

Heart Failure, Acute Myocardial Infarction, COPD, Pneumonia, CABG, Elective Primary Total Hip 

and Total Knee. 

 

Ms. Hove presented Healthcare Acquired Infection related to COVID. The pandemic has 

created practice changes, including staffing ratios, increased critical care capacity, and PPE 

usage nationwide.  

 

Medical Staff Update 

Dr. Poyer gave the Medical Staff report, noting we are still operating in crisis care with the 

changes noted by Ms. Hove, with an increase in critical care practice. As of this morning we 

zero (0) COVID patients, although we anticipate the coming holiday events to create another 

surge in December. The staff has worked really hard with limited assets, supplies and staffing, BUT 

have done a really great job! 

 

Informational Items for Review/Discussion 

No discussion. 

 

From the Director – bimonthly 

No report this month. 

 

 

Meeting Adjourned    

 

The Regular Session moved into Executive Session at 9:12 am. Dr. Sowada noted they may or 

may not have action items upon return to Regular Session. Executive Session ended at 10:03 am, 

with no action items. They did not return to Regular session, meeting adjourned at 10:03 am.  
 

Next Meeting    January 19, 2022 at 08:15 am via ZOOM. 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

24/127



25/127



26/127



27/127



28/127



29/127



30/127



31/127



32/127



33/127



34/127



35/127



36/127



37/127



38/127



39/127



40/127



41/127



42/127



43/127



44/127



45/127



46/127



47/127



48/127



49/127



50/127



51/127



52/127



53/127



54/127



55/127



56/127



57/127



58/127



59/127



60/127



61/127



62/127



63/127



64/127



65/127



66/127



67/127



68/127



69/127



70/127



71/127



72/127



73/127



74/127



75/127



76/127



77/127



78/127



79/127



80/127



81/127



82/127



83/127



84/127



85/127



86/127



87/127



88/127



89/127



90/127



91/127



92/127



93/127



94/127



95/127



96/127



97/127



98/127



99/127



100/127



101/127



102/127



103/127



104/127



105/127



106/127



107/127



108/127



109/127



110/127



111/127



112/127



113/127



114/127



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…November Buildings and Grounds Committee Meeting 
Date:  November 26, 2021 
 
Regarding the HVAC/UVG Project…staff indicated the project is complete, but there are still 
inspections which must be completed. 
 
Regarding the S1 Unit…staff indicated this project is complete as well with a final inspection 
scheduled for the first week of December. 
 
Regarding the Medical Imaging Renovation Project…there remains work to be done in the later 
phases of the project. It will be a few more months before this project is completed. 
 
Regarding the Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room Project…the Hospital is awaiting plans and 
specifications. This is an important life safety project. Once more information is available, the 
staff will seek approval to move forward. 
 
Regarding Dr. Sulentich’s Office Project…the work should be bid out in December. 
 
Regarding the Building Automation System Project…very little has been done so far due to the 
applicable contractors being tied up with other projects. This is a good winter project. 
 
Regarding the Generator ATS Project…John Kolb is repairing the fire pump, but the repairs to 
the transfer switch have not been done yet. The Committee agreed to have staff go ahead with 
the engineering work. With most lightning strikes occurring in the summer, it would be ideal to 
get the lightning arrest project bid out and the work done before then. County maintenance 
funds may be available to be used on this project. 
 
Regarding the tabled projects…Mr. Tardoni indicated there may be a possibility of getting some 
donated labor associated with the Waldner House retaining wall. This will be investigated 
further. 
 
Ms. Richardson indicated that she will present some ideas to the Committee to look at during 
the December meeting for the Special Purpose Tax. She indicated that MHSC projects could 
total between $5 and $7 million. 
 
For more details, refer to the B & G meeting minutes. 
 
 

115/127



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BUILDING & GROUNDS COMMITTEE AGENDA 

Tuesday ~ November 16, 2021  3:30 p.m.  Zoom teleconference   

   

Voting Board Committee Members:     Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chairman  

Ed Tardoni, Trustee 

 

Voting Staff Committee Members:   Irene Richardson, CEO 

Tami Love, CFO 

Jim Horan, Director of Facilities 

 

Non-voting Members:     Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

Stevie Nosich, Safety Coordinator 

 

Guests:      Jake Blevins – ST&B Engineering 

Will Wheatley – Plan One/Architects 

Fred Bronnenberg – Groathouse Construction 

Jeff Smith - County Commissioner Liaison 

 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order      Marty Kelsey 

2. Approve Agenda      Marty Kelsey 

3. Approve Minutes – October 19, 2021    Marty Kelsey 

4. Maintenance Metrics      Jim Horan 

a. Work orders  

b. Department overtime  

c. Budget variance 

 

5. Old Business        

a. Project Review       

i. HVAC/UVG projects    Jake Blevins   

ii. Medical Imaging renovation   W. Wheatley/J. Blevins/G. Johnston 

iii. S1 Unit      Jake Blevins 

iv. Chemo Mixing room    Jim Horan/Will Wheatley 

v. Dr. Sulentich Office    Will Wheatley 

vi. Building automation system   Jim Horan 

116/127



vii. Generator ATS Event    Jim Horan 

 

b. Tabled projects      Jim Horan 

i. Bulk Oxygen – tabled until February 2022     

ii. Replacement roofing for power house  

iii. OB Bathtubs to Showers 

iv. Foundation Waldner House retaining wall 

   

6. New Business - None     

 

7. Next meeting schedule      Marty Kelsey 

a. December 21, 2021 Zoom; 3:30P – 4:30P 

 

8. Adjournment       Marty Kelsey 

 

 

 

 

 

117/127



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

November 16, 2021 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on November 16, 2021, 

at 3:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

   Mr. Fred Bronnenberg, Groathouse Construction 

    

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the agenda.  Mr. Tardoni made a motion to approve the 

agenda.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the October 19, 2021 meeting. Mr. 

Tardoni made a motion to approve the minutes.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed.   

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Horan said the maintenance metrics are pretty much the same with many months to prove the 

consistency.  They are expecting a tough winter so are expecting to see some overtime in the winter 

months for snow removal.  He thanked the Board for approving the new plow truck but has learned 

it will take up to 30 weeks to get one ordered.  

  

Old Business – Project Review 

 

HVAC/UVG Projects 

 

Mr. Johnston said this project is complete.  Mr. Bronnenberg commented that OHLS will be back 

the first week of December for more inspections. 

 

S1 Unit 

 

Mr. Johnston said this is complete.  Pat Davis will be here to do the final inspection the week of 

December 1st.  He will be doing the final inspection on Phase 2 & 3 also.  Mr. Kelsey asked about 

the commissioning of the new unit that was mentioned last month. 

 

 Medical Imaging Renovation 

 

Mr. Johnston said there are some doors we need to replace and some Groathouse needs to replace 

per the plan of correction filed with the State from the inspection of Phase 1.  Mr. Johnston said 

the flooring has been completed in Phase 2 & 3 and the bathroom has been completed.  He said 

they are waiting for the new vestibule door.  They are moving onto Phase 4 with demolition.  Pat 

Davis was onsite today.  They plan on Phase 4 taking about 3 months to complete. 

118/127



 

 

Minutes of the November 16, 2021 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

 

Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room  

 

Mr. Horan said he has let PlanOne Architects and ST&B Engineering know we are ready to start 

this project but has not seen anything yet.  Mr. Tardoni asked for some detail regarding the needs 

for this project and Mr. Horan explained the project.  Mr. Tardoni shared his concerns and will 

have technical questions for the final plans once we receive them.  Mr. Johnston confirmed Mr. 

Wheatley and Mr. Blevins will get started on this soon. 

 

Dr. Sulentich Office  

 

Mr. Horan thinks the project is ready to be advertised.  Mr. Johnston confirmed the project will be 

bid out in December. 

 

Building Automation System 

 

Mr. Horan said the two vendors have started a conversation and have begun taking measurements.  

It is moving slowly but he hopes to report on some progress at the next meeting.  

 

Generator ATS 

 

Mr. Horan said Mr. John Kolb has continued to work on the repairs of the fire pump.  The repairs 

of the manual transfer switch have not been scheduled yet.  They will coordinate down time with 

MRI as it will impact the chilled water system.  Ms. Love said it was decided at the last meeting 

we would include the lightning arrest proposal in the budget for next fiscal year.  Mr. Tardoni 

asked for an explanation on the fire pump issue versus the lightning strike.  Mr. Horan explained 

the cascading issue from the fire pump.  Ms. Love said we could also use the County maintenance 

funds for this project.  Mr. Horan recommended we move forward with the engineering portion of 

the lightning arrest proposal due to the possibility of exposure to more lightning strikes.  The 

committee agreed with moving forward with the engineering portion so we have a better idea of 

the cost and the possibility of using the County maintenance funds.  Mr. Kelsey asked when the 

fire pump would be fixed and Mr. Horan said it should be completed this week.  The repair of the 

manual transfer switch will need to be coordinated with Groathouse and MRI for an outage. 

 

Tabled Projects   

 

Mr. Kelsey reviewed the list of table projects.  Mr. Tardoni asked for more information on the 

Waldner House retaining wall.  He thinks there could be a community group that would like to 

donate their time to help with this project.  Mr. Horan will get a quote and Mr. Tardoni will have 

this group go over and take a look at the property to get a better idea of the project needs.   

 

 

New Business 

 

No new business was presented. 

 

 

 

119/127



 

 

Minutes of the November 16, 2021 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

Other Business 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked that we add the Special Purpose Tax project discussion to the agenda so we can 

keep it in the forefront.  Ms. Richardson said she thinks our project should be about $5 - $7 million.  

She said we will bring ideas for projects to the next meeting. 

 

The next meeting will be held December 21 at 3:30 p.m.   

 

Ms. Richardson gave an update on COVID. 

 

Mr. Kelsey wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving and the meeting was adjourned at 4:18 p.m.  
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

120/127



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…November Compliance Committee Meeting 
Date:  November 26, 2021 
 
The Compliance Committee met on Monday, November 22nd. 
 
Since the November meeting of the Board, Senior Leadership has officially determined that 
Compliance should not be under the Quality umbrella, but rather should report directly to the 
CEO. As Compliance Committee chair, I am 100% in support of this reporting structure. It  
provides the greatest chance for independence which is vital to the compliance effort at MHSC. 
The Compliance Officer (Suzan Campbell) will report to the CEO. There will be a Compliance 
Auditor (April Prado). The Compliance Committee will be comprised of the CEO, the Compliance 
Officer, two Board members (one of whom will serve as chair) and the Compliance Auditor who 
will be a non-voting member of the Committee. 
 
The Committee voted to forward the proposed, new Compliance Committee Charter to the 
Board of Trustees for its consideration at the December meeting. 
 
Irene, Suzan and April will be working on the Compliance Program document which needs 
revision from what was presented to the Board in November. It is anticipated that this 
document will be ready for review by the Compliance Committee which is scheduled to meet 
the fourth Monday in December. 
 
Suzan Campbell reviewed several items with the Committee. There have been no internal 
investigations involving OSHA or CMS and no allegations of fraud or Senior Leadership 
misconduct; however, there were some HIPPA violations about which HR and supervisory 
personnel are dealing. The Committee should have a report at the December meeting about 
these violations. 
 
Staff is working on finding some compliance reporting software that will work at MHSC. The 
annual work plan is being developed. 
 
Suzan briefly reviewed several compliance documents from the Office of the Inspector General. 
Board members may wish to go on the Board Portal (November 2021 Compliance Committee 
Agenda) to look at these documents to get a good feel for the types of compliance matters 
about which the Compliance staff, Senior Leadership, Department Directors and all MHSC 
employees must be aware, as applicable to their duties and responsibilities. 
 
The Committee determined that regular monthly Compliance Committee meetings will be held 
on the fourth Monday of each month at 9:00 a.m. 

121/127



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Compliance Committee Meeting 

November 22, 2021 

 
 

The Compliance Committee met in regular session via Zoom on November 22, 2021, at 4:00 PM 

with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

Ms. Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel 

   Ms. April Prado, Foundation & Compliance 

 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order and welcomed everyone. 

 

Approve Agenda 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Ms. Richardson; second by Ms. 

Campbell. Motion carried. 

 

Approve Minutes 

 

The motion to approve the October 28, 2021, meeting minutes as presented was made by Ms. 

Campbell; second by Ms. Richardson. Motion carried. 

 

Old Business 

 

Revised Committee Charter 

 

The Committee reviewed the charter and proposed some additional changes. Ms. Campbell will 

update and forward to the Committee to review. The motion to approve with the changes as 

discussed and forward to the Board for review and approval was made by Ms. Richardson; second 

by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. 

 

New Business 

 

Standing Items Report 

 

Ms. Campbell reviewed the list of reports. She has forwarded some healthcare-related reporting 

software programs to Ms. Richardson for her review. Ms. Campbell said the HIPAA monitoring 

spreadsheet is in the packet. It is a report from Ms. Amber Fisk, Human Resources Director, and 

Ms. Fisk does the investigations. Ms. Campbell offered to work on formatting the information and 

said she thinks our new electronic health record, Cerner, will have their own reporting system. Ms. 

Pendleton said she doesn’t think we need to spend a lot of time recreating the format of the report 

at this point. Ms. Campbell included some basic overview information on the final rule on Starke 

and anti-kickback regulations. Changes were made because most hospitals now employ 

physicians. Ms. Richardson said physician contracts are one of our audit items and we ensure we 

comply with laws and regulations. Ms. Campbell offered more detailed information to anyone 

interested. Mr. Kelsey said we are fortunate to have an attorney over all of this. Ms. Campbell said 

122/127



 

 

Minutes of the November 22, 2021 Compliance Committee Meeting 

Page 2 

she included compliance information from the Office of the Inspector General (OIG). She said this 

is where she started when designing the MHSC Compliance Plan. Mr. Kelsey and Ms. Pendleton 

said it is so nice to have a broad overview.  

 

Mr. Kelsey said it is exciting to have this new thrust and direction. He feels it is a lot better having 

the Compliance Officer report directly to the CEO and it is more in-line with what others do. The 

group discussed information to include in the Board meeting packet. Committee information will 

be in the committee packet. The chair report, minutes, and anything for review for approval will 

be included in the Board meeting packet. The group agreed to meet on the fourth Monday of each 

month at 9:00 AM. Mr. Kelsey thanked everyone for their work. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 4:42 PM. 

 
 

 

 

Submitted by Cindy Nelson 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

123/127



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Governance Committee Meeting 

November 18, 2021 

Agenda 

Old Business 

1. None.  

New Business 

 1. Potential policies 

  a. Board change order policy 

  b. Executive evaluation policy 

  c. Rules of Practice for Governing Hearings 

 2. Board quality education…Physician leadership videos 

 3. Standing meeting time and day 

 4. Other 

 

 

 

124/127



 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Governance Committee Meeting 

September 3, 2021 

Zoom Meeting 

 

Voting Members Present: Taylor Jones, Irene Richardson, and Barbara Sowada 

 

Call Meeting to Order 

 

Taylor Jones called meeting to order at 10:30 am. 

 

Discussion 

 

Minutes September minutes were previously approved. Committee did not meet in October. 

 

Old Business: None 

New Business 

1. Potential policies 

a. Board change order policy is needed to assure consistency. Irene will delegate the writing of this 

policy to Tami Love or another designee. 

b. Executive evaluation policy may need to be revised. Barbara will send current policy to committee 

members for discussion at the December meeting. 

c. Rules of Practice for Governing Hearings. Irene will ask Geoff Phillips, Board Attorney, to proceed 

with drafting these rules. 

2. Board Quality Education 

a. The iProtean videos for the December Board meeting are 

i. Part 1. Developing Physician Leaders 

ii. Part 2. Partnering with Physician leaders 

iii. Physician leadership Training: Recommitting the Board to the Quality Agenda. 
b. As a way to offer leadership training to the hospital’s physicians, Irene will ask Dr. Denker to invite 

the medical department chairs to view these videos together. 

3. Standing day and time for Governance Committee meeting will be the third Thursday of each month at 

11:00 am. 

 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 12:00 noon. 

Next meeting is December 16th at 11:00 am by Zoom. 

Submitted by Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

 

125/127



126/127



127/127


	Agenda - December 1 2021 Mtg
	Our Mission and Vision
	Minutes
	Introductory and Probationary Period Policy
	Employee Corrective Action Policy
	Termination, Suspension Without Pay and Appeal Policy
	Compliance Committee of the Board Charter
	Quality Committee
	FY 22 30
	FY 22 31
	FY 22 32
	November Committee Meeting Information
	Building and Grounds...Chair&apos;s Report...November 2021 Marty Kelsey for December Board Meeting
	BG 2021 Agenda November
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes November 16 2021 Draft
	Compliance Committee...Chair&apos;s Report...November 2021 Marty Kelsey for December Board Meeting
	Compliance Committee Meeting Minutes November 22 2021 Draft
	Governance Agenda Nov 18 2021
	Minutes November 2021 Barbara Sowada for December Board Meeting
	Board Policy Exec Oversight and Comp

